



Murrindindi
Shire Council

MINUTES
of the
ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL
held on
WEDNESDAY 28 FEBRUARY 2018
in the
ALEXANDRA COUNCIL CHAMBER
commencing at
6.00 pm

INDEX

1.	PLEDGE AND RECONCILIATION STATEMENT	2
2.	APOLOGIES AND REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE	2
3.	COMMUNITY RECOGNITION	2
4.	DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST OR CONFLICT OF INTEREST	3
5.	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES	3
6.	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION TIME	3
6.1	Questions of Council	3
6.2	Open Forum.....	3
6.3	Petitions.....	3
9.	OUR PROSPERITY	4
9.1	Regional Tourism Partnerships	4
7.	OUR PLACE	7
7.1	Review of Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee.....	7
8.	OUR PEOPLE	13
8.1	Extension of Leases at the Kinglake Rebuilding and Advisory Centre.....	13
10	OUR PROMISE	14
10.1	Quarterly Council Plan 2017-2021 Progress Summary - 31 December 2017	14
10.2	Quarterly Financial Report to 31 December 2017	16
10.3	December Quarterly Report – Capital Works Program 2017/18	20
11.	NOTICES OF MOTIONS	23
12.	MATTERS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETING	23
13.	URGENT BUSINESS	23
14.	COUNCILLOR AND PORTFOLIO REPORTS	23
14.1	Cr Margaret Rae - Land Use Planning Portfolio	23
14.2	Cr Jackie Ashe - Economic Development Portfolio	25
14.3	Cr Eric Lording - Infrastructure and Waste Portfolio	26
14.4	Cr Leigh Dunscombe - Corporate and Customer Services Portfolio	27
14.5	Cr Rebecca Bowles - Natural Environment and Climate Change Portfolio	27
14.6	Cr Sandice McAulay - Community Services Portfolio	28
14.7	Cr Charlotte Bisset – Mayoral Report.....	30
15.	ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCILLORS	31
16.	SEALING REGISTER	33
17.	CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS	33
17.3	Tender 17/33 – Planning Services Panel	34
17.4	Tender 18/1 – Yea Regional Saleyards – Truck Parking Area.....	35
17.5	Tender 17/4 – Civil Works Panel.....	35
17.6	Eildon Jamieson Road – Safety Improvements.....	36

1. PLEDGE AND RECONCILIATION STATEMENT

The meeting was opened with all Councillors declaring the following Pledge:

“We as Councillors democratically elected to represent our community as the Murrindindi Shire Council, are committed to working together in the best interests of the people who live in our municipality, who conduct business here and those who visit.”

2. APOLOGIES AND REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

There were no apologies or requests for leave of absence tendered.

Present:

Crs C Bisset (Chair), S McAulay, R Bowles, J Ashe, L Dunscombe, E Lording, M Rae

In attendance:

Interim Chief Executive Officer: Craig Lloyd

General Manager Corporate and Community Services: Michael Chesworth

General Manager Infrastructure and Development Services: Stuart McConnell

Manager Business Services: Andrew Bond

Manager Development Services: Shivaun Brown

Manager Infrastructure Assets: John Canny

Manager Infrastructure Operations: Mark Leitinger

Governance Officer: Audrey Kyval

3. COMMUNITY RECOGNITION

Council will suspend standing orders to allow the Mayor and Councillors to recognise:

- the appointment of the 2018 school captains from the Alexandra Secondary College – Harrison Walker and Maya Linehan, Vice Captains Brayden Burchall and Jess Bellman
- Neil and Delice Guscott as recipients of the Progressive Melvin Jones Award for 30 years of Lions Club service.

RESOLUTION:

Cr S McAulay / Cr J Ashe

That Standing Orders be suspended.

CARRIED

The meeting was suspended at 6.02 pm.

RESOLUTION:

Cr L Dunscombe / Cr M Rae

That Standing Orders be resumed.

CARRIED

The meeting was resumed at 6.10 pm.

4. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST OR CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Cr J Ashe will leave the Chamber during Council's consideration of Item 9.1 due to her concern that there may be a public perception that she has an interest in the matter. This was not a declared Conflict of Interest under the definition within the *Local Government Act 1989*.

5. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

5.1 Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 24 January 2018.

Officer Recommendation

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 24 January 2018 be confirmed.

RESOLUTION:

Cr E Lording / Cr J Ashe

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 24 January 2018 be confirmed.

CARRIED

The Chairperson declared Public Participation Time and invited questions from the Gallery.

6. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION TIME**6.1 QUESTIONS OF COUNCIL**

Two questions were received from Jack Russell of Yea. Per section 109.3 of the *Governance Local Law No. 2*, the questions were not read as the submitter was not present at the meeting. A separate response to the submitter will be provided as per section 110 of the *Governance Local Law No. 2*.

6.2 OPEN FORUM

Mike Dalmau, representing Murrindindi Inc., spoke against the Regional Tourism Partnerships (item 9.1 on the Agenda).

Andrew Embling, representing Goulburn River Valley Tourism, spoke against the Regional Tourism Partnerships (item 9.1 on the Agenda).

Gordon Simpson, representing Alexandra & District Traders and Tourism Association spoke against Regional Tourism Partnerships (item 9.1 on the Agenda).

6.3 PETITIONS

Nil

The Chairperson closed Public Participation Time.

RESOLUTION:**Cr C Bisset / Cr S McAulay****That the agenda be re-ordered to consider Item 9.1 before considering the remaining items of the agenda.****CARRIED****9. OUR PROSPERITY**

Cr J Ashe left the Chamber at 6.39 pm prior to consideration of item 9.1 of the Agenda.

9.1 REGIONAL TOURISM PARTNERSHIPS**Purpose**

This report considers options for Council's future regional tourism partnership arrangements. In particular, this report presents recommendations in relation to the renewal or otherwise of Council's current Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Goulburn River Valley Tourism (GRVT). Council's current MoU with GRVT expires 30 June 2018.

Officer Recommendation

That Council:

1. not renew the Memorandum of Understanding with Goulburn River Valley Tourism
2. request Council officers to provide a report to Council recommending an approach to future regional tourism partnership arrangements.

Background

Council enters into agreements with a regional tourism organisation to provide collective marketing, product development and other tourism support and development services with other councils (and similar organisations).

While Council has entered into agreements with a range of regional tourism organisations over the years, since 2011 Council has had an agreement with GRVT which covers the following local government areas: Mitchell Shire, Strathbogie Shire, Murrindindi Shire and the City of Greater Shepparton. Council's current MoU with GRVT expires on 30 June 2018.

A new draft MoU has been prepared for consideration by each of the partner councils. The City of Greater Shepparton has endorsed the MoU subject to minor changes. The Shire of Strathbogie has resolved to support renewal of the MoU for a period of one year.

Discussion

Any decision to renew (or not renew) the MoU with GRVT should consider:

- the capability and capacity of GRVT to meet the aspirations of Council in the context of the Council Plan 2017-2021
- the strategic alignment of tourism assets and products in Murrindindi Shire with those in other local government areas that are members of GRVT and the impact of this on the strength of collective marketing and other services
- the availability of other partnerships that can deliver greater value to the communities of Murrindindi Shire, consistent with the directions of the Council Plan 2017-2021.

Capability and Capacity of GRVT

GRVT has established itself as a regional tourism organisation since 2011. More recently with the appointment of a new Chief Executive, GRVT is continuing to advocate strongly for the region and developing new programs and campaigns.

Any decision not to renew an MoU with GRVT needs to take into account the investment to date in GRVT and the resources that have been produced through GRVT to support tourism in Murrindindi Shire. This is not insignificant and any transition would need to be managed carefully.

GRVT is however limited by the resources available. Unlike regional tourism boards, GRVT does not receive any base funding from Visit Victoria and is reliant for base funding on councils. No matter the strengths of the team, there is a limit in what can be delivered with current resourcing levels, compared to resources available to regional tourism boards.

GRVT has been successful in gaining some grant funding from Visit Victoria however this would need to increase substantially to provide a level of resources commensurate with what is needed to deliver on Council's aspirations in relation to tourism marketing and development.

Strategic Alignment

The four councils that partner with GRVT under the banner 'Heart of Victoria' provide a tourism offering from nature based tourism, snow and cycling, to food and wine, cultural heritage, equestrian, major events and more. This offering is characterised by diversity rather than strong alignment in tourism products or marketing position.

Alternative Partnerships

Other regional partners for tourism development and marketing are potentially available. This would depend on negotiating an agreement, including services, priorities and funding, with one or more alternative partner organisations. Preliminary discussions indicate that other tourism organisations could potentially be interested in partnering with Council.

If Council decides not to renew the MoU with GRVT, Council officers will progress discussions with potential partners and bring a further report to Council for consideration.

Council may also partner with regional tourism organisations/boards and Visit Victoria on specific campaigns or initiatives rather than relying on a single, formal partnership.

Note that revenues from the Australian Tourism Data Warehouse website for Murrindindi Shire have historically been directed to Yarra Ranges Tourism. Similarly, the Visit Victoria website indicates Murrindindi Shire as being part of the Yarra Valley and Dandenong Ranges region.

Impact on GRVT and Other Councils

A decision not to renew the MoU would impact on the operations of GRVT, reducing the base funding budget for GRVT by ~16%.

Conclusion

On balance, it is recommended that Council resolve not to renew the MoU with GRVT and request Council officers report to Council recommending an approach to future regional tourism partnership arrangements, given:

- the current resourcing and funding available to GRVT limits its capacity provide services commensurate with Council's aspirations for tourism development and marketing
- while there is a diversity of tourism assets and products across the four local government areas currently covered by GRVT, there is significant scope to strengthen alignment and/or complimentarily of the tourism offer through alternative partnerships

- preliminary discussions with potential partners confirm the opportunity for arrangements that better meet the needs of Council.

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This report is an important step in delivering on the following strategy under the Council Plan 2017-2021 “Our Prosperity” - work with our businesses, regional partners and communities to support a diverse visitor experience that promotes our natural assets, and a vibrant range of events.

Relevant Legislation

Not applicable.

Financial Implications and Risk

The membership fee payable to GRVT for 2018/19 would be \$39,937 (increasing by consumer price index (CPI) in subsequent years). In practice, Council would need to contribute to tourism campaigns and other work in excess of this in order to meet Council’s aspirations in relation to tourism, consistent with the Council Plan.

If Council decides not to approve a renewal of the MoU with GRVT, there will be a need to negotiate a relationship with one or more other regional tourism organisations. As at the date of this report, no alternative agreement is in place and therefore there is a risk that Council is unable to negotiate an acceptable alternative arrangement. Council officers are currently working to manage this risk.

The Victorian Government may review the arrangements for regional tourism organisations, given it is understood most agreements with Visit Victoria currently run until 2019. This may change the funding arrangements for GRVT or for other regional tourism organisations. There is limited capacity to control this risk and therefore Council needs accept this risk and consider this in decision making.

There is a risk with any partnership approach that the entity may fail to perform as expected. Council mitigates these risks by using a clear MOU and agreeing to strategic directions, setting clear and measurable deliverables. Council officers monitor these agreements and advise Council if any concerns arise over the ability of the organisation or partnership to deliver the agreed outcomes.

Conflict of Interest

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

Council officers have consulted Goulburn River Valley Tourism and a range of tourism industry stakeholders in gathering information to support preparation of this report.

MOTION:

Cr M Rae proposed that Council:

1. endorses the renewal of the Memorandum of Understanding with Goulburn River Valley Tourism for a period of one year commencing 1 July 2018, subject to confirmation that all existing member Councils will continue to be members for this period
2. appoints Mr Stuart McConnell as Council’s representative on the board of Goulburn River Valley Tourism
3. undertakes further consultation with affected businesses and stakeholders to explore options in relation to the potential of other partnerships that may deliver greater value to the communities of Murrindindi Shire, consistent with the directions of the Council Plan 2017-2021

4. requests Council officers to provide a report for consideration by Council no later than 28 February 2019 setting out options and recommendations for future regional tourism partnership arrangements, including consideration of the performance of Goulburn River Valley Tourism in contributing to delivery of the relevant strategies of the Council Plan 2017-2021 and taking into account the capacity, capability and strategic alignment of Goulburn River Valley Tourism and any commitment to ongoing funding by the Victorian Government.

RESOLUTION:**Cr M Rae / S McAulay****That Council:**

1. **endorses the renewal of the Memorandum of Understanding with Goulburn River Valley Tourism for a period of one year commencing 1 July 2018, subject to confirmation that all existing member Councils will continue to be members for this period**
2. **appoints Mr Stuart McConnell as Council's representative on the board of Goulburn River Valley Tourism**
3. **undertakes further consultation with affected businesses and stakeholders to explore options in relation to the potential of other partnerships that may deliver greater value to the communities of Murrindindi Shire, consistent with the directions of the Council Plan 2017-2021**
4. **requests Council officers to provide a report for consideration by Council no later than 28 February 2019 setting out options and recommendations for future regional tourism partnership arrangements, including consideration of the performance of Goulburn River Valley Tourism in contributing to delivery of the relevant strategies of the Council Plan 2017-2021 and taking into account the capacity, capability and strategic alignment of Goulburn River Valley Tourism and any commitment to ongoing funding by the Victorian Government.**

CARRIED

Cr J Ashe returned to the Chamber at 6.57 pm.

7. OUR PLACE**7.1 REVIEW OF MURRINDINDI ENVIRONMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE**

Attachment(s): *No 1 Terms of Reference (refer Attachment 7.1a)*
No 2 Draft Minutes of MURRINDINDI ENVIRONMENT ADVISORY
COMMITTEE Meeting held 19 December 2017 (refer Attachment 7.2b)

Purpose

The Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee's (Committee) Terms of Reference and membership has expired and requires a review.

Options for future community engagement and advice in relation to environmental performance and delivery of the Council Plan 2017-2021 are presented for Council's consideration, together with the draft minutes for the Committee meeting held on 19 December 2017.

Officer Recommendation**That Council:**

1. implement the following (option 2 as outlined in this report):

- a. revoke of the Terms of Reference of the Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee
 - b. set up two expert advisory panels for natural resource management and renewable energy initiatives
 - c. conduct an annual forum(s) on the environment to showcase projects undertaken by local groups including information about the progress of Council projects and to provide an opportunity for community feedback to Council
2. send letters of appreciation to current members of the Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee thanking them for their contribution to the Committee.
 3. note the draft minutes of the Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee meeting held 19 December 2017
 4. request Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) to undertake an assessment of alleged breaches by VicForests of the Code of Practice for Timber Harvesting within the Murrindindi Shire, particularly in the Rubicon State Forest, and provide advice to the community about the outcomes of this assessment, as recommended by Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee

Background

The Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee was formed in 2007. The Terms of Reference (TOR) governs the way the Committee operates and is reviewed every three years. The current TOR expired in August 2017.

The Committee's role, as currently defined in the TOR, is one of providing advice. It is not delegated to make decisions on behalf of the Council. The Committee is to consider environmental issues relevant to Murrindindi shire through:

- sharing of expertise and knowledge
- providing expert advice on agenda items
- acting as a conduit to other individuals and/or organisations when required
- supporting Council officers integrate environment into decision making
- providing direction to management and/or Council
- providing a forum for raising and discussing environmental issues.

The members of the Committee comprise of seven community representatives and three agency representatives. The community representatives volunteer their time and expertise and demonstrate ongoing commitment to the Committee. More than half of the Committee membership comprise of people with professional expertise in natural resource management.

Discussion

Evaluation of Existing Committee

In recent times, the current Committee has focussed on local environmental advocacy issues associated with timber harvesting in the Central Highlands Forests. The Committee has had limited involvement in the development and delivery of the Council Plan.

The professional interest and expertise of the current Committee members is extensive in the fields of forestry and natural resource management (biodiversity, land, water). Expertise in corporate environmental management and sustainability, waste, energy, greenhouse gas emissions management, renewables etc. is underrepresented.

Attendance has been decreasing over the last two years.

There are also opportunities to improve the processes and governance of the Committee's operation. Any advisory committee takes significant staff resources to operate effectively and contribute to the broader organisation. The Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee is no different. As a result it is critical that the Committee is focussed on the priorities of Council and the matters Council can most effectively influence, rather than other environmental priorities.

The Committee has previously provided feedback in the development of:

- Environment Strategy 2011 – 2015
- Roadside Management Plan and Code of Practice
- Roadside Weed and Pest Animal Control Plan
- Council's approach to resource management (energy, water, paper, waste etc.)
- Environment Policy and Strategy Review
- advocacy submissions to State and Federal Government.

The time and expertise contributed by Committee members to these and other items over a number of years is recognised and greatly appreciated.

Feedback From Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee

Options for future community engagement and advice were discussed at the Committee meeting on 19 December 2017 and included continuation with the current or amended Committee model and/or use of task forces, forums and community panels.

Feedback received from the Committee included:

- Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee is a strategic committee and should be retained
- the Committee provides independent advice
- the predominant focus of the Committee has been on forestry related issues
- there is need to improve the diversity of the Committee and its capacity to consider a range of perspectives.

What Is Needed?

Council has defined its key focus areas for the next four years in the Council Plan 2017-2021. The community are invited to provide their input into the Council Plan as a minimum every four years, and this sets the key strategies for the Council including for the environment at a local level.

Council has key roles to:

- ensure our activities are as sustainable as practicable
- support communities to be more sustainable through support of relevant community groups and specific programs such as the proposed Solar Bulk Buy and work with the Upper Goulburn Landcare Network
- advocate on behalf of our communities on relevant environmental issues.

Council is not resourced to undertake major advocacy programs and needs to focus its limited resources on the first two elements above, where Council can make the most difference. The current Committee arrangement takes significant resources to support and administer and is not always focused on Council's own environmental priorities within the Council Plan.

Future community input could be focussed on, for example:

- the development of the Council's strategic objectives through a separate reference group like the Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee
- the delivery of identified projects with assistance from expert community members
- reviewing the delivery of actions and outcomes under the Council Plan through community feedback
- seeking of expert advice from the community.

Initial Options

A number of options have been developed for consideration in relation to the future of Council's environment advisory arrangements:

Task Force:

- a task force is formed based on need and brings together a unit or team of people working on a single defined task or need. A task force would have a defined start and finish. This model would be particularly relevant to Council's focus on renewable energy and energy efficiency projects.

Forum(s):

- Council could opt to have an environmental forum(s) across Murrindindi shire. The forum would be an opportunity to participate in a discussion on what Council and the community are doing to meet the objectives of the Council Plan as well as to showcase what other community groups are achieving in our shire.

Community Panels:

- Council could define areas of expertise that would support the implementation of priority actions in the Council Plan
- panels would be established for the relevant groups of actions such as natural resource management and renewable community energy projects
- Council officers could then draw on the expertise of these panels as required.

Continue the Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee in a modified way:

- Council could opt to continue with an Environment Advisory Committee (EAC), but change the rules to improve effectiveness such as:
 - clarifying the primary purpose of the EAC is to assist in the delivery of the Council Plan
 - reducing the amount of meetings held per year, e.g. from six to three-four meetings
 - creating specific responsibilities for the EAC (in between meetings) such as assisting organise an environmental forum
 - reducing the number of members to increase focus in the deliberations (say, four-six in total)
 - bringing in specific expertise when required by accessing member's community networks and connections
 - more active management of the agenda in line with delivery of the Council Plan and Council's annual planning and review cycles
 - identification of an independent chair.

Assessment of Initial Options

Task Force:

- this option has the potential to be even more demanding on internal resources as each project could have separate task force membership and require extensive administration and is not favoured.

Forum(s):

- forum(s) could be incorporated with any planned annual reporting to the community envisaged by the Council or could be more focused on environmental issues
- resources to arrange an annual forum(s) could be significant
- proposed forum(s) is supported, although further consideration is needed in relation to the preferred approach.

Community Panels:

- the idea of having expert panels is supported and could add significant value to Council officers in the planning and delivery of Council's actions. The appointment process may take some time however once established the resources required to maintain the arrangement would be minimal.

Conclusion

Council already has its strategy for the environment which was formed largely through its engagement with the community through the Have Your Say program.

The key strategy is to 'strengthen the environmental sustainability of our communities, protect our natural environment and reduce resource consumption'. Council also has identified a number of clear priority actions under this strategy.

The bulk of all work undertaken in the environment portfolio is prepared by Council officers or by consultants engaged for a particular project. Council also uses its networks and attendance at regional forums such as the Goulburn Broken Greenhouse Alliance (GBGA) and the Goulburn Valley Waste and Resource Recovery Group (GVWRRG) to access up to date information. Independent advice could be sought from advisory expert panels.

Council recognises that it cannot be responsible for driving reforms or improvements in every area of the environment strategy and is reliant on community input and initiatives. This is particularly the case in relation to community renewable energy projects where developments are occurring at a rapid pace.

Two key options therefore are:

Option 1: Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee and forum(s):

- establish new Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee with revised TOR as outlined above, providing advice and accountability for delivery of the Council Plan
- annual forum(s) to provide an opportunity for broader engagement, information and celebration with the community.

Option 2: panels and forum(s):

- not renew the Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee (ie. the Committee has expired)
- establish community panels to provide advice to Council in delivery of the Council Plan

- annual forum(s) to provide accountability to the community about how Council has progressed in delivering on the Council Plan, and enable broader engagement, information and celebration with the community.

Neither option will significantly reduce resourcing by Council although the outcomes can be more focussed on Council's priorities. Option 2 is recommended as the most suitable approach moving forward as it better aligns with the objectives and delivery of the Council Plan.

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This report is consistent with all four objectives in the Council Plan 2017 - 2021, but has a direct relationship with the strategic objective Our Place:

'We will maintain and enhance places to be attractive and liveable in balance with our natural environment'

'Strengthen the environmental sustainability of our communities, protect our natural environment and reduce resource consumption'.

Relevant Legislation

There is no regulatory requirement to have an Environment Advisory Committee.

Financial Implications and Risk

The cost of running an EAC is funded through Council's operational budget. Under the current model, it costs around \$3,600 to service the Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee, excluding the impacts of time spent on the delivery of priority environmental projects.

Conflict of Interest

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

Discussions were held with the Committee about the future options at the meeting on 19 December 2017.

RESOLUTION:

Cr L Dunscombe / Cr E Lording

That Council:

- 1. implement the following (option 2 as outlined in this report):**
 - a. revoke of the Terms of Reference of the Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee**
 - b. set up two expert advisory panels for natural resource management and renewable energy initiatives**
 - c. conduct an annual forum(s) on the environment to showcase projects undertaken by local groups including information about the progress of Council projects and to provide an opportunity for community feedback to Council**
- 2. send letters of appreciation to current members of the Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee thanking them for their contribution to the Committee.**
- 3. note the draft minutes of the Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee meeting held 19 December 2017**

4. **request Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) to undertake an assessment of alleged breaches by VicForests of the Code of Practice for Timber Harvesting within the Murrindindi Shire, particularly in the Rubicon State Forest, and provide advice to the community about the outcomes of this assessment, as recommended by Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee**

CARRIED

8. OUR PEOPLE

8.1 EXTENSION OF LEASES AT THE KINGLAKE REBUILDING AND ADVISORY CENTRE

Purpose

This report seeks Council's endorsement to extend the leases with the current tenants at the Kinglake Rebuilding Advisory Centre for a further 12 months, until 30 June 2019. This is to enable sufficient time for the tenants, including Parks Victoria, to relocate and to allow options for the potential future community use of the facility to be properly formulated and assessed by the community and Council.

Officer Recommendation

That Council:

- authorise the Interim Chief Executive Officer to offer an extension to the current leases arrangements with Parks Victoria and other business tenants at the Kinglake Rebuilding and Advisory Centre for a further term of 12 months, until 30 June 2019
- continue to support efforts by the Kinglake community to develop a viable community management model for the Kinglake Rebuilding and Advisory Centre into the future.

Background

At the May 2017 Ordinary Meeting, Council resolved to extend the current tenancy of the Kinglake Rebuilding and Advisory Centre (RAC) by Parks Victoria and other small business tenants for 12 months until 30 June 2018, whilst options are explored for potential future community use of the facility.

The 12 month extension was also to provide time for Parks Victoria and other tenants to find alternative sites in Kinglake from which to operate.

Discussion

On 22 October 2017 a community led public meeting was held in Kinglake to identify options for the future community use of the RAC. At the meeting a community working group was formed to assess the feasibility of the ideas raised at the meeting. Whilst the group has been working through these ideas there has not yet been sufficient time for the group to formulate a sustainable community management model for the RAC for consideration by Council.

Further, Parks Victoria has advised that it is likely to rebuild its Kinglake facilities on its former site in the Kinglake National Park on National Park Road, however the new facilities would not be ready for occupation prior to 30 June 2019. Consequently it has sought a 12 month extension to its current lease. The three small business tenants at the RAC have also indicated a desire to extend their leases for a further 12 months to 30 June 2019.

It is recommended therefore to extend the current tenancies at the RAC for a further 12 months, and continue to support the development of viable options for community management of the RAC into the future.

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This matter is consistent with the Council Plan 2017-2021 strategy under Our People to work with our community and groups to connect, collaborate and plan for our future.

Relevant Legislation

There are no significant legal issues which need to be addressed in the context of this report.

Financial Implications and Risk

The daily operating and maintenance costs of the RAC site have, to date, been largely covered by the current leasing arrangements, with Council retaining financial responsibility for capital renewal.

Moving to a community based operating model for the RAC may require a greater role for Council to financially support or underpin the operations and maintenance of the site, as currently exists for other large facilities in Kinglake and other areas of the shire.

Consideration may also need to be given to the source for any required funding to reconfigure the layout of the RAC in order to best support viable community uses.

It will be necessary therefore that any proposals for community use of the site be considered by balancing the broader community benefits of the proposed use with the impacts on the longer term financial viability of this site, the consequences for the viability of other public facilities in the area and Council's ongoing financial sustainability requirements.

Conflict of Interest

There was no declared conflict of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

Council has not initiated any community consultation with respect to the proposed extension of leases at the RAC. Council officers have been assisting the community working group formed to investigate viable options for future community management and this group is aware that the matter of extending the current leases for a further 12 months is being considered by Council at this meeting.

RESOLUTION:

Cr L Dunscombe / Cr M Rae

That Council:

- **authorise the Interim Chief Executive Officer to offer an extension to the current leases arrangements with Parks Victoria and other business tenants at the Kinglake Rebuilding and Advisory Centre for a further term of 12 months, until 30 June 2019**
- **continue to support efforts by the Kinglake community to develop a viable community management model for the Kinglake Rebuilding and Advisory Centre into the future.**

CARRIED

10 OUR PROMISE**10.1 QUARTERLY COUNCIL PLAN 2017-2021 PROGRESS SUMMARY - 31 DECEMBER 2017**

Attachment(s): *Council Plan 2017-2021 Quarterly Report – December 2017 (refer Attachment 10.1)*

Purpose

This report provides the second quarter summary of progress to date in delivering the actions in the Council's Priority Action Plan 2017/18.

Officer Recommendation

That Council receive the quarterly report ending 31 December 2017 on the status of actions from the Priority Action Plan 2017/18.

Background

Council adopted its Council Plan 2017-2021 at the Special Meeting of 21 June 2017. The Council Plan sets out the overall strategic direction of Council over its four year term based on an extensive community consultation program conducted across the Shire.

At the September 2017 Ordinary Meeting Council adopted the Priority Action Plan 2017/18 which outlines the actions that Council will pursue during the 2017/18 year to implement the four year strategies in the Council Plan.

Both the Council Plan 2017-2021 and the Priority Action Plan 2017/18 are published on Council's website.

A report on progress in implementing the priority actions are provided to Council at the end of each quarter.

Discussion

Attachment 10.1 provides a brief summary of activity undertaken to date under each of the four strategic objectives relating to Our People, Our Place, Our Prosperity and Our Promise. Reference is made to the action number from the Priority Action Plan 2017/18.

Highlights from the second quarter (September – December) include the following:

Our People

- we adopted the new Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing plan 2017-2021 to ensure our communities remain active, healthy and connected
- the Walk to School program was completed successfully with seven schools participating in events to promote physical activity and healthy eating
- a youth arts therapy program commenced to support young people with personal development and anxiety issues
- we supported the development of a Good Access is Good Business program to help traders improve access for people with disabilities.

Our Place

- we signed up to the Local Government Energy Savers program to assist in creating energy improvements in Council buildings
- we completed the tender process and appointed a local contractor for the construction of the Murrindindi Bushfire Memorials
- after significant community engagement, we adopted our Domestic Animal Management Plan, setting out our approach for community and animal safety
- our emergency management arrangements were confirmed with the three year update and successful auditing of our Municipal Emergency Management Plan

Our Prosperity

- we launched our "Discover Dindi" Instagram and Facebook sites to enhance promotion of the Murrindindi Shire
- we ran six information sessions to support local businesses to bid for projects and supplier panels established by Council

- we continued working with investors, Goulburn Murray Water and Regional Development Victoria to progress development opportunities in Eildon

Our Promise

- we made a submission to the State Government Planning for Sustainable Animal Industries
- we commenced the installation of Council's new Integrated Asset Management System which aims to improve the way we manage community assets
- we commenced our participation in an industry self insurance workcare scheme, which includes a focus on improving health and safety practices across Council
- we continued to work with VicRoads to identify issues and priorities for road upgrades and safety improvements.

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This report is consistent with Council's Our Promise strategic objective in the Council Plan 2017-2021 to work in collaboration with our communities to deliver the best possible outcomes in all that we do.

Relevant Legislation

Council has a statutory obligation to prepare and approve a Council Plan in accordance with Section 125 of the *Local Government Act 1989*.

Financial Implications and Risk

The delivery of the Council Plan 2017-2021 is supported by the four year Strategic Resource Plan and the Annual Budget.

Conflict of Interest

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

The actions in the Priority Action Plan 2017/18 have been developed with reference to the priorities identified from the community following the 'Have Your Say' community consultation undertaken in February – April 2017.

RESOLUTION:

Cr M Rae / Cr S McAulay

That Council receive the quarterly report ending 31 December 2017 on the status of actions from the Priority Action Plan 2017/18.

CARRIED

10.2 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT TO 31 DECEMBER 2017

Attachment(s): *2nd Qtr Financial Report (refer Attachment 10.2)*

Purpose

The report provides the quarterly financial report for the period ending 31 December 2017.

Officer Recommendation

That Council receives the Quarterly Financial Report to 31 December 2017.

Background

Financial governance is important for a Council's good governance because the consequences of failure can be very significant for a Council.

Council has overall accountability for the Council's finances. This comes in two ways. Firstly, the Council is required to prepare and periodically review its long term financial plan. This is called the Strategic Resource Plan and forms part of the Council Plan.

Secondly a Council must prepare and adopt the annual budget. The Council must also receive regular financial reporting. As a minimum a Council must receive a quarterly financial report which compares actual and budget revenues and expenses in each of the four prescribed Standard Statements (refer *Attachment 10.2 - Statements A – D*):

- Comprehensive Income Statement
- Balance Sheet (incorporating Changes in Equity)
- Statement of Cash Flow
- Statement of Capital Works

It is important to note that these Standard Statements are based upon public sector financial reporting, the key principle of which is that Council is required to account for the revenue in the year that it is received rather than when it is expended. As capital works projects and grant funded programs often extend over one financial year, another principle of public sector reporting is that carry forward adjustments need to be made.

Discussion

Annual Council Budget

The draft quarterly financial statements that are attached to this report detail Council's financial position as of 31 December 2017 and provide a record of all financial activity that occurred in the first six months of the 2017/18 financial year. It should be noted that this report continues from the first quarter report that recognised and adjusted for the financial impact of all items carried forward from the 2016/17 financial year. This includes items that were budgeted to occur in the 2016/17 financial year that were incomplete or not achieved prior to 30 June 2017, as well as the impact of items that were initially budgeted to occur from 1 July 2017 onwards, that were required to be recognised in last year's financial statements for accounting purposes. Details of these adjustments were tabled at the 25 October 2017 Ordinary Meeting of Council.

Quarterly Financial Report to 31 December 2017

The table below is a reconciliation between Council's Revised Budget presented in the first quarter report and the December Revised Budget figures within the enclosed Statements, which include the carry forward of unexpended projects from 2016/17.

Table 1 – Reconciliation of Budget Adjustments (next page):

	2017/2018	2017/2018
	Operating Result	Capital Works
	Surplus / (Deficit)	Budget
September Revised Budget 2017/2018 - with carry forwards (Deficit)	(2,664,266)	(10,885,981)
Bushfire Memorials Construction - - \$142,528 Cont & Donations + \$38K from Reserve	133,142	(171,142)
Marysville Tourism & Arts Centre - funding \$126,530 VBAF & \$391,960 Bendigo Bank	518,490	(518,490)
Prime Mover - Waste Services - Cl. Minute 27/9/2017 - from Waste Reserve		(225,046)
Passenger Vehicles - deferred, adjusted actual & inclusion CEO Vehicle		9,610
Mobile Library - Prime Mover (insurance \$43,273 - rec'd June 2016)		(43,273)
Mobile Library - Rejuvenation Project - GR863	40,800	(40,800)
Library Generators - Living Libraries Program - return unexpended grant	(24,603)	24,603
Yea Caravan Park - electrical works		(29,499)
3245 Pools Operations to 3648 Pools Equipment	6,000	(6,000)
Savings - Eildon Boat Ramp - works completed by GM Water		28,000
Works deferred in 2017/18 - carried forward into 2018/19 Budget	423,978	1,566,679
Grants Capital - deferred works - c/fwd Yea Railway Playground, Alex Tennis & Yea Children's Centre	(305,500)	
Operating Grants Carried Forward - Doing Business Better	(121,090)	
Rate Revenue - 1% growth target reduced to 0.75% (achieved 0.5% in 2016/17)	(40,000)	
Special Charge Schemes - deferred until 2018/19 - timing	(87,000)	
Statutory Fees & Fines - Planning \$100K, Building \$20K Septic \$10K & Elections \$11K.	141,082	
User Fees - Aged & Disability \$242K, Waste Landfill \$76K, Leisure Centre \$12K & Shire Halls \$4K.	334,829	
Grants Operating - FDC \$121K, Streaming Growth \$50K, Playgroups \$41K, Meals \$31K plus minor.	269,930	
Contributions - Non Monetary - Gifted Art Works	10,000	
Reimbursements - \$18K Mansfield Building Surveyor / \$4K Roadside Weed contributions	22,229	
Other Revenue - Interest \$50K , Rental (Kinglake RAC) \$55K & Other - Scrap Steel \$9K	114,338	
NET Favourable adjustment Employee Benefits & Materials and Services	80,864	
reallocation \$425K - Business Grants, Events & Tourism - Priority Action Plan	(425,000)	
Depreciation Adjustment - forecast - all categories - includes Landfill amortisation	(432,912)	
Other Expenses - Councillor / Mayoral Allowances	(7,232)	
Finance Costs - no draw down of Loan 2017/18	4,178	
Gain / Loss on Disposal - Land Sales deferred to 2018/19 - including write out of carry values	55,054	
Write Out - Building Assets Disposed - Yea Caravan Park - carrying value	(147,000)	
December Revised Budget 2017/2018 - with all adjustments (Deficit)	(2,099,689)	(10,291,339)

As previously reported to Council, the original budget operating deficit has been impacted by carry forward adjustments as detailed as part of the September 2017 Budget Review projecting a \$2.66 million operating deficit for 2017/18. With revised grant funding, increased income generation through user fees and operating grants, together with a revision of all operating and capital expenditure for the expected year end 30 June 2018 results, Council's Revised Budget for 2017/18 is now forecasting an operating deficit of \$2.09 million.

It should again be noted that the bulk of the operating deficit results from the advance payment of the 2017/18 Victorian Grants Commission (VGC) funding of \$2,224,000 that was unexpectedly received in the last week of June 2017 and not in the 2017/18 year. Several other grant funded projects either advanced or not completed at year end improved the overall 30 June 2017 operating result and increased the levels of cash held by Council. These project budgets will be expended during 2017/18.

The Annual Revised Budget for 30 June 2018 incorporates all adjustments detailed above and included in the attached financial statements.

Balance Sheet (Statement B)

The Balance Sheet – Statement B as at 31 December 2017 shows minimal year to date variance with Cash and Cash Equivalents favourable variance of \$427,000 directly related to the year to date operating result variance as presented within the Income Statement.

Trade and Other receivables year to date show minimal variance and are on track with initial budget projections. Council's debt position has been adjusted to reflect the decision not to borrow an additional \$500,000 in 2017/18, which gives a revised balance as at 30 June 2018 in interest bearing borrowings of \$986,865.

Cash Flow Statement (Statement C)

This statement provides a more holistic picture and reports the important information on Council's cash inflows and outflows. Net cash flow from operating activities in the Cash Flow Statement (a cash view of the operating statement) shows an increase of \$2 million when compared to the first quarter reports. The bulk of this adjustment is in revised projections for payments to suppliers and employees, as well as an improved projection in revenue collected from user charges, fines and contributions. Net cash used in investing activities (Capital Works) shows an overall decrease of \$0.13 million and net cash used in financing activities (mainly Trust and Deposits shows the adjustment of (\$500,000) proceeds from borrowings.

The overall result with the inclusion of the additional cash of \$5.17 million held at 30 June 2017 as detailed in the First Quarter report is reflected in the Balance Sheet with the Revised Budget for 2017/18 projecting an increase in cash of \$1.69 million when compared to the First Quarter report.

Non Discretionary Cash and Council Reserves (Statement E)

Included as part of this report is an additional reconciliation detailing Council's Non Discretionary Cash Flow requirements. This reconciliation lists all Council reserves together with funds held as Deposits or Trust which are required to be refunded, and an allowance for the provision of employee entitlements. The employee entitlement provision includes a nominal amount of 25% of Council's Annual Leave Liability and 25% of the Long Service Leave Liability as of 30 June 2017. An allowance of \$1.41 million has also been recognised as funding for the operational and capital carry forward adjustments. These funds have been included in the increase in projected cash held as at 30 June 2018.

Councillor Expenses (GST Exclusive):

As agreed in the new Councillor Reimbursement Policy that was adopted by Council at its February 2017 Ordinary Meeting, the following table details Councillor expenses for the six month period ending 31 December 2017.

Table 2:

Councillor	Councillor Allowance	Mobile Phone	Training & Professional Development	Accomm. & Travel	Total
Cr C Bisset	\$38,857.84	\$545.45	\$192.62	\$0.00	\$39,595.91
Cr S McAulay	\$13,006.43	\$545.45	\$192.62	\$1,564.27	\$15,308.77
Cr J Ashe	\$13,006.43	\$545.45	\$192.62	\$0.00	\$13,744.50
Cr R Bowles	\$13,006.43	\$545.45	\$192.62	\$711.54	\$14,456.04
Cr L Dunscombe	\$13,006.43	\$545.45	\$192.62	\$3,860.74	\$17,605.24
Cr E Lording	\$13,006.43	\$545.45	\$192.62	\$3,467.79	\$17,212.29
Cr M Rae	\$13,006.43	\$545.45	\$192.62	\$0	\$13,744.50
Subtotal	\$116,896.42	\$3,818.15	\$1,348.34	\$9,604.34	\$131,667.25

It should be noted that accommodation and travel costs include the reimbursement of the claims which a Councillor may choose to submit for travelling to Council meetings, briefings and other functions which they attend in their capacity as a Councillor. Where a Councillor's residence is greater than 50 kilometres from the location of a Council meeting, they may also claim the statutory remote area allowance.

It should also be noted that Councillors' can elect for part of their allowance to be deducted for superannuation purposes.

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This report, in relation to the Annual Budget and quarterly financial reporting, is consistent with the Council Plan 2017-18 strategy under Our Promise to maintain Council's financial sustainability through sound financial and asset management practices.

Relevant Legislation

The *Local Government Act 1989* (the *Act*) requires, under section 126, that a Council must prepare a Strategic Resource Plan for a period of four years.

The *Act* also sets out in section 127 that the Council must prepare a budget for each financial year. Then, in section 138, the *Act* requires that quarterly financial reports must be presented to Council.

Financial Implications and Risk

The financial governance of a Council is an important role for Councillors. The risk of poor financial management can have a significant impact upon the governance of the Council. The financial implications flowing from this quarterly financial review are outlined in this report.

Conflict of Interest

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in the preparation of this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

The *Act* requires that councils give public notice of their annual review of the Council Plan (which includes the Strategic Resource Plan) and also its Annual Budget. All submissions received by Council must be considered, in accordance with section 223 of the *Act*.

The table below is a reconciliation between Council's Revised Budget presented in the first quarter report and the December Revised Budget figures within the enclosed Statements, which include the carry forward of unexpended projects from 2016/17.

RESOLUTION:

Cr E Lording / Cr L Dunscombe

That Council receives the Quarterly Financial Report to 31 December 2017.

CARRIED

10.3 DECEMBER QUARTERLY REPORT – CAPITAL WORKS PROGRAM 2017/18

Attachment(s): *Infrastructure Capital Works Progress Report (refer Attachment 10.3)*

Purpose

This report provides an update on the 2017/18 Capital Works Program (CWP) for the second quarter of the year ending 31 December 2017. The CWP is progressing well overall. The status of individual projects is shown in Attachment 10.3.

Officer Recommendation

That Council note the December Quarterly Report – Capital Works Program 2017/18.

Background

This report is the second quarter report of the CWP. The period of reporting is from 1 October to 31 December 2017. The CWP is comprised of those projects endorsed by Council as part of the 2017/18 Capital Works budget, projects identified for carry forward from the 2016/17 program and approved projects that have received grant funding during the financial year.

Discussion

Work undertaken during the second quarter includes the completion of projects carried forward from the 2016/17 CWP and the design and procurement phases of the 2017/18 capital works projects.

This report also includes an attachment (Attachment 10.3) which indicates the Council officers' level of confidence in projects being completed within the current financial year using a traffic light system. The colours shown highlight the following:

- green –the project will be delivered within the current financial year
- yellow – there is a medium risk that there may be a delay in delivery due to issues outside of Council officer's control
- red – there is a high risk that delivery will not occur within the current financial year for reasons as outlined
- blue - the project has been assessed and is no longer required
- brown – works completed.

Additional information on projects is presented below:

1. Major areas of expenditure for the quarter:

- landfill cell capping design - \$28,509
- resource recovery centre shed upgrade - \$9,360
- Yea Caravan Park - \$29,499
- drainage network expansion - \$37,432
- kerb renewal - \$43,565
- drainage upgrade trouble spots - \$46,662
- footpath missing links - \$34,890
- kerb and channel upgrade - \$27,200
- bridge renewal program - \$737,756
- Yea Saleyards truck parking - \$31,589
- roads major maintenance - \$93,613
- gravel road sealing program - \$10,000
- Yea and District Children's Centre – facility upgrade - \$24,798

2. Projects where physical works are anticipated to commence during the next reporting period (1 January to 31 March, 2018):

- sealed roads program
- gravel road re-sheeting program
- Alexandra Shire Hall – window furnishings
- Alexandra Chambers meeting room – lights and curtain renewal
- Bushfire Memorials – construction
- Cheviot Tunnel – condition assessment
- Yea Recreation Reserve – renewal
- Yea Regional Saleyards – truck parking

- Marysville and Triangle Arts and Culture – internal refurbishment
- Kinglake Office and Library – carpet renewal
- path program

3. Projects that are delayed or other significant issues that have arisen which affect the timing or budget for the project:

Buxton Waters Estate Pathway

Due to additional works required before this project can proceed, the project has been removed from the 2017/18 program, and can be considered in future budgets.

Yea Shire Hall

As advised in the September Quarterly Report, Council officers submitted expressions of interest for grant funding to undertake further works at the Yea Shire Hall. Following this, Council was invited to submit a full application. If successful it is unlikely that works will commence prior to the end of the financial year. As such, the existing budget has been transferred into the 2018/19 financial year.

Eildon Boat Ramp

Goulburn-Murray Water has undertaken the fencing works and a Council contribution is no longer required.

Timber Tramway Museum

Council is awaiting the finalisation of lease negotiations between Victrack and other stakeholder groups at the site, which will determine the timing and priority for works associated with Council's exit from the lease with Victrack.

Vegetation Projects

Funds allocated to this project are unlikely to be required until the effects of current project are fully assessed. It is likely a fresh funding allocation will be proposed in the future.

Murchison Street, Marysville

Detailed design will be completed this financial year following the need for extensive consultation with adjoining owners. Construction is to be undertaken next financial year after completion of subdivision and the adjoining owner's development plan.

Yea Children's Centre Upgrade

This project is fully grant funded with grant approval received June, 2017. Service investigations and are nearing completion allowing the detailed design documentation to be prepared. Procurement for construction works will be commencing this financial year with construction to be completed in the first half of the 2018/19 financial year.

Alexandra Lawn Tennis – Court Resurfacing

This project is dependent on a successful grant application to contribute to Council's budget allocation. If successful, it is unlikely that these works will commence this financial year.

[Note: Since the conclusion of the December quarter Council has received advice that the grant application has been successful.]

Yea Playground

This project is dependent on a successful grant application contribute to Council's budget allocation. If successful, it is unlikely that these works will commence this financial year.

[Note: Since the conclusion of the December quarter Council has received advice that the grant application has been successful.]

4. Projects completed in the December quarter:

- Bridge Renewal Program
- carried forward – 2016/2017 Path Program
- Perkins Street Drainage
- Marysville Kindergarten – windows

- Alexandra Landfill – installation of monitoring bores
- Seal Rock Road – drainage
- Yea Regional Saleyards – stage 2 construction
- Alexandra Library – carpet renewal

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

The CWP is consistent with the Council Plan 2017-2021 “Our Promise” strategic objectives to work in collaboration with our communities to deliver the best possible outcomes in all that we do. It is also consistent with the Council Plan Strategy to maintain Councils financial sustainability through sound financial and asset management.

Financial Implications and Risk

Timely reporting of financial issues assists in early identification of the need for corrective action or reallocation of budget where required. Reporting of project progress also provides Council and the community with an understanding of when projects will commence and communicates delays if they occur.

Conflict of Interest

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

No external consultation has been undertaken in the preparation of this report.

RESOLUTION:

Cr E Lording / Cr L Dunscombe

That Council note the December Quarterly Report – Capital Works Program 2017/18.

CARRIED

11. NOTICES OF MOTIONS

Nil

12. MATTERS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

Nil

13. URGENT BUSINESS

Nil

14. COUNCILLOR AND PORTFOLIO REPORTS

14.1 CR MARGARET RAE - LAND USE PLANNING PORTFOLIO

The planning component of my report this month is relatively brief as planning applications steadily progress with none coming before Council at this meeting.

- Planning and Environment Amendment (Distinctive Areas and Landscapes) Bill 2017 (a new bill) has passed the lower house and has been recommended to the upper house. Five councils are identified and it was stated that the Shire of Macedon Ranges is intended to be the first area declared with the whole shire being of state significance

- State Government has released a new State Environment Protection Policy, (SEPP Waters), together with a draft policy impact assessment and a draft implementation plan for consultation until 19 June 2018. Planning related matters include requirements for onsite wastewater management and stormwater management
- VicSmart process continues to roll out and now averages around 10% of all planning applications. This is anticipated to increase over time
- there is some progress on the Sustainable Animal Industries issue. A large number of submissions were made and considered and work continues on developing appropriate definitions and guidelines for future introduction. Draft reforms are now being prepared for consideration by the Minister
- Victoria Planning Authority (VPA) has been in a state of some flux with considerable staffing changes, however there is now a new and stable team that is working with relevant shires on implementation packages. There will be capacity to expand the assistance available as required
- other matters being progressed include localised planning statements with the intent to transition these to planning policy statements. Initial work has commenced on a proposal to put settlement boundaries around townships. The Victorian Farmers Federation (VFF) is developing an educational pack for new residents around biosecurity issues.

In addition to portfolio matters I have attended a number of activities representing Council, including:

- Peri Urban Committee – main items are reported above
- Local Government Victoria (LGV)/Victorian Local Government Association (VLGA) forum on Local Government Act review – this forum gave the opportunity to hear a presentation on recent proposed updates to the draft document and to question some of the assumptions and changes
- Australia Day – the event held in Alexandra was warmly welcomed by the community and was well attended as always. It is a landmark event for Alexandra and is much appreciated by the community
- Business and Tourism Innovation Grants Forum – held to advise community and business leaders about the inaugural round for this initiative
- Alexandra Racecourse and Recreation Reserve Committee – this committee has responsibility for the area that encompasses both the racecourse and the golf course and performs at a very high standard;
- Civic reception for 90 year old plus residents – this was a lovely occasion which was clearly enjoyed by the large number who attended.
- Yea Art Show – a great show that showcased the Yea Shire Hall to its best advantage
- Alexandra Events Volunteer Lunch – this was a lunch given by Alexandra Events to recognise the efforts of all those who contribute their time and effort to assist with events. Cheques were handed out to a number of organisations from the proceeds of the recent rodeo – another very successful event
- Alexandra & District Traders and Tourism Association (ADTTA) – this was an extraordinary meeting to fill vacancies on the committee occasioned by recent resignations. Not all positions were filled on the night so the committee will now determine a process for recruitment to the remaining vacancies
- Alexandra & Eildon District Lapidary Club – held their annual Gem Show in Thornton. This brings exhibitors from all over Victoria and also contributes regularly to our

economy. Congratulations to the club and its members for a continually successful show.

14.2 CR JACKIE ASHE - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO

Congratulations Holmesglen at Eildon for winning silver at the Qantas National Tourism Awards in the area of Business Events.

Business and Tourism Innovation Grants:

- Information session delivered in Yea
- Flyers up in many locations across the Shire
- Face to face meetings scheduled for 26 February at Kinglake and 27 February at Alexandra
- This round closes on 14 March at 3 pm. If you are not quite ready for this round there will be other rounds in the next financial year
- All of the information is on Council's website <http://www.murrindindi.vic.gov.au/Our-Services/Grants>

Jayco Herald Sun Tour:

- We are waiting on data from GTR Events for visitation levels etc, however early data indicates:
 - 85 traditional media articles or radio interviews across stage 3 and 4
 - The reach included Spain, Italy, Vietnam, Netherlands, Denmark, Poland, Borneo, South Africa, Portugal and more <https://borneobulletin.com.bn/colombias-chaves-wins-australias-herald-sun-tour>
 - 125 tweets from stages 3 and 4 - including 12 specific host Council activations and tourism videos / photos
 - Facebook Ads featuring Murrindindi Shire had a reach of 61,471
 - Facebook organic content (not including race live feed) had a 42,662 reach
 - 7108 likes/views on Instagram including 1094 views of the penny farthing race.
- A big thank you to all of the community groups from the Kinglake Ranges that contributed to the success of this event, particular the Village Green area. To Lake Mountain and Marysville thank you for all your hospitality and efforts. Thanks also to the businesses that supported the event and took the opportunity to be involved as well as promoting what Murrindindi Shire has to offer.

I recently caught up with Murrindindi Cycle Club to discuss possibilities of cycling events in our region, also a conversation around partnerships.

The Small Business Bus (Business Victoria) will be in Marysville on 22 March 2018. It is a great opportunity for small business to get advice and support.

Rural Financial Counselling Service - AgBiz assist:

- local businesses mainly with a focus on agricultural sector
- by providing a range of services including financial advice, plan and strategy development, dealing with financial institutions, farm debt mediation and accessing grants
- based in Wodonga but now more available.

Any business owner/operator that would like to keep up with business and event information is welcome to get in touch to be added to Council's Business email database.

Coming out of Victoria Tourism Industry Council (VTIC) today, we need to talk to our Schools about how great an industry tourism and events is with the potential for learning, travel and life experience that this industry opens doors to.

Some interesting statistics:

- currently 206,300 jobs in Victoria and growing – fastest growing employment sector
- more than 55% of regional tourism visitors are from Melbourne and 53% of 'New Melbournians' (internationals who have lived in Melbourne for less than 7 -10 years) haven't visited regional Victoria as they have no emotional connection with it and that is something that Visit Victoria are working on
- there will be a focus in the tourism space for 'Leisure Tourism'.

14.3 CR ERIC LORDING - INFRASTRUCTURE AND WASTE PORTFOLIO

There has been an enthusiastic community response to the naming of our re-use shops in Alexandra and Yea. Council will be invited to assess the applications and select the winners of the completion. Entries close Thursday 15 March 2018. This has been further advertised via a positive interview on the ABC this morning.

Issues around the recycling of comingled recyclables continue although Council's contract with Visy to process our kerbside recyclable collection is yet to be directly impacted. Our key message for the community is to keep up the good work of recycling and to minimise contamination of the recycling stream as much as possible. Information is available on Council's website <http://www.murrindindi.vic.gov.au/Your-Property/Garbage-and-Recycling> . This has proven the value of Council working closely with the Goulburn Valley Waste and Resource Recovery Group (GVWRRG), having developed a very robust supplier contract. The Victorian Government has provided \$13 million up to 30 June 2018 to assist councils in the transition to a post China waste export era.

Our main programs of re-sheeting and sealed roads are well underway. I wish to remind road users to obey traffic control around road works for the safety of everyone involved. Further information on the capital works program can be viewed on page 20 of these minutes.

Council have provided Yea businesses with an update about the Wasp program:

- Phase 2 is a strategic approach aimed at the broader wasp population, targeting nests and the wasps themselves
- One of the key actions carried out during Phase 2 includes a rubbish bin trial in Yea's High Street retail precinct - removed open bins, replaced with lidded bins, reduced the number of bins, empty daily and wash weekly
- At this stage businesses are reporting a reduction in the observation of wasps. This is likely to be in part of the flooding event in December although Council will continue working with the community on this issue.

A reminder that the Flowerdale Forum is being held on the evening of the 9 March at the Flowerdale Country Fire Authority (CFA). Influential people will be there, so please come and present a vision for the future of Flowerdale and nearby towns.

Council is continuing to advocate strongly with VicRoads and relevant ministers to address a number of outstanding road safety issues. While this occurred outside of our shire we are

particularly concerned about the recent fatalities on the Melba Highway at Dixons Creek given this is key access to our shire.

We have been advised that we have received funding from VicRoads (\$90,000) for improvements in kerb and channel in Station Street Yea.

14.4 CR LEIGH DUNSCOMBE - CORPORATE AND CUSTOMER SERVICES PORTFOLIO

It has been a pretty busy month since our last ordinary meeting with Council officers and Councillors all devoting a lot of time in the preparation of the 2018/19 Council budget and associated reports. Progress has been good and we are hoping to have a full draft budget ready soon. Next will be the Strategic Resource Plan (SRP) that we will be concentrating on over the next month or so.

I was also very pleased to act as MC on Australia Day in Kinglake and thrilled to see two Kinglake locals receive honours, Pam Lawless for Murrindindi Shire Senior Citizen of the Year and Kate Chalmers for Young Citizen of the Year. Congratulations also go to Wayne Miller who was also awarded Senior Citizen of the Year and Fern Hames as Murrindindi Shire Citizen of the Year. It was also an honour to meet our Kinglake Australia Day Ambassador, Tim Conolan, and learn about the fantastic work he is doing with sick kids and their families through his charity TLC for Kids.

Another recent big event was of course the Jayco Herald Sun Tour bike race. A massive event that showcased our Shire from top to bottom on the international arena and demonstrated to the world what a beautiful place Murrindindi really is. I am also chuffed to be able to say that at my age I actually started and finished an international bike race. It's probably not necessary for me to point out that I shot the starters pistol and waved the chequered flag.

We have had a few other items on our agenda to which we have had to devote a considerable amount of time. Not least of which is the consideration of the draft new *Local Government Act*. Many of us have attended briefings and forums on the draft new *Local Government Act* and provided our input for consideration and discussion. Submissions will be tended and we will have to wait and see what we end up with.

14.5 CR REBECCA BOWLES - NATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE PORTFOLIO

The Australia Day weekend was a busy one in the Cheviot Ward, especially for the Rotary Club of Yea. There was the opening night of the Rotary Art Show over the long weekend and over 50 paintings sold. Australia Day celebrations were also held in Yea and Strath Creek, with the great pavlova bake off having many contenders with Stuart Hait the eventual winner. Interestingly enough the Yea Picnic Races were brought forward by an hour due to the heat, then cancelled due to the thunderstorm the night before causing flooding.

Yea Wetlands breakfast with the birds for Wetlands Day saw 15 people rise earlier than usual to spot 24 bird species with the musk lorikeet identified as a new species.

Goulburn Broken Catchment Management Authority has completed the Desert Ash Removal program along a 3 kilometre riparian zone up at Hughes Creek. Revegetation and instream habitat restoration will be the next stage of the program.

The Arthur Rylah Institute of Environment Research also concluded fish surveys at the Yea Fishing Club with Macquarie Perch, Yellow Belly and Red Fin recorded and of course plenty of Carp which were disposed of.

Council hosted a public information session at the Yea Town Hall for the Queensland Fruit Fly, unfortunately I wasn't able to attend but it appeared to be well attended.

The Goulburn Broken Greenhouse Alliance (GBGA) was held in Benalla on the 22 February 2018 with a business case being prepared for electric cars in Council fleets progressing. Final report to be released in March.

There was also a presentation on future purchasing arrangements for electricity by Councils with the options of alternative arrangements incorporating renewable energy becoming a more cost effective option. Section 86 committees being squeezed by rising energy costs.

Council has written to relevant State Government ministers:

- Minister D'Ambrosio - seeking restoration of funding for the Good Neighbourhood Funding program, Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) and Parks Victoria program of weed and pest control on public land, which comprises of approximately 40% of shire land to prevent impacts on private land
- Minister Pulford – seeking a review of the planned timber harvesting near Snobs Creek Falls so that the visual amenity and tourism value of Snobs Creek Falls is not compromised.

Don't forget Clean Up Australia Day activities across the shire this weekend. For more information visit our website <http://www.murrindindi.vic.gov.au/News-Media/Council-urges-Murrindindi-Shire-residents-to-get-their-hands-dirty>

I attended the following:

- Yea Wetlands
- Yea Community House
- Strath Creek Australia Day event
- Municipal Association Victoria (MAV) Environment Committee
- MAV Community Empowerment
- Goulburn Broken Greenhouse Alliance
- Murrindindi Hub regarding proposed hotel developments
- MAV Location Government Act Review

14.6 CR SANDICE MCAULAY - COMMUNITY SERVICES PORTFOLIO

I was honoured to attend the very scrumptious high tea at the Alexandra Hall held last Thursday to recognise the amazing people in our community who are over 90 years old, otherwise known as nonagenarians. I talked to amazing people who were both inspirational and had so much wisdom as well as humour to impart. Their consistent message to ensure a long life was of look out for yourself and keep positive. It was wonderful to be able to recognise many for their contribution over decades to our community.

The event also included the launch of nonagenarian Sandy Wallace's book 'Ten Chapters from a Ten Pound Migran'. There was also a screening of the much anticipated More Murals project '90 Up: Living Links to the Past' by Anna Baker and Blair Macdonald featuring quite a number of the guests that were present. Those stars that I talked to were delighted to see themselves up on the big screen.

On a personal note my mother in law who recently became a nonagenarian herself was pleased to attend in the afternoon after a very successful women's golf tournament winning the C-grade, Vets and the small teams that morning. I don't intend on taking her on in a golf competition any time soon.

I would like to take the opportunity to thank the Community Service team members for once again going that extra mile to make sure that everyone felt welcome and had every conceivable need met. Well done.

This morning I was excited to attend the Marysville and Triangle Arts Centre meeting update. The construction team have erected barriers around the Visitor Information Centre (VIC) and there was a hive of activity in the centre of Marysville this morning. If you missed the interview on UGFM transmitted from the Marysville studio this morning, Brian Stillet was talking with one of the Committee members Bob McNamara who updated the community on all of the exciting activities at the former Marysville VIC site. I say former because there is a competition to name our space where locals are invited to collect a form from the VIC temporary location in Murchison Street, opposite the Vibe, in order to give the new identity a snappy new name which will be used in future advertising. The space, for lack of name, is anticipated to reopen mid 2018.

I was also very fortunate this month to attend the Buxton Recreation Reserve meeting barbeque where the committee talked all things Buxton Recreation Reserve but had also invited the Council outdoor officers who attend to the Buxton area to join the barbeque in recognition of their gratitude of all the work done by the outdoor crew. This committee is a great example of how the community and Council works together to maintain our wonderful assets.

Last week I was also very proud to be Chair of the Municipal Emergency Management Planning Committee where many of the valued participants, including representation from Victoria Police (VicPol), State Emergency Service (SES), Country Fire Authority (CFA) as well as local organisations, were all very complimentary of the great work done by Council officers in response or in anticipation of the bad weather report in the first weekend of December last year. There was great foresight and proactive effort which ensured that sand bags were available to people in the community. This was actively promoted using all of the available media and many affected community members availed themselves of the sandbags. The Council outdoor officers showed that there are innovative ways of utilising their trucks by utilising one of their pieces of equipment to help fill the bags. Well done.

Councillor Ashe and I were pleased to be invited to the first training session of the first all female footy team in Murrindindi Shire started this year at the Thornton Eildon Football Club. I look forward to attending their first game that I believe is to be held mid March. I am particularly impressed given that a number of years ago the Club had completely folded and was only reactivated a couple of years ago. The team has obviously taken local football to whole new level – well done Thornton Eildon community.

Lastly, but not least I have to also mention the Jayco Herald Sun Tour and how exciting it was to be part of the huge crowd over the two days at both Lake Mountain and Kinglake. The Marysville community excelled themselves with their international flag display at the entrance to Marysville at the foot of the climb to Lake Mountain. To be at the finish line in Marysville to see these elite bicyclists cross over the finish line after such an exhausting day knowing they had to get back on those seats again the next morning made my eyes water. Kinglake pulled out all stops and there was no room to move. Everyone got out along the entire course to encourage the riders on their five laps of the circuit. Well done to all involved!!!

14.7 CR CHARLOTTE BISSET – MAYORAL REPORT

Thank you for the opportunity to present my report.

Things were quiet through the Christmas and New Year period, but now they have ramped up with the past month being a very busy one.

Beginning with the Australia Day celebrations and ceremonies held across the Shire in conjunction with local communities. It was a day that four outstanding Murrindindi Shire Citizens were acknowledged. Recipients were, Fern Hames (Alexandra) - Murrindindi Shire Citizen of the Year, Kate Chalmers (Kinglake) - Murrindindi Shire Junior Citizen of the Year and dual recipients of the Murrindindi Shire Senior Citizen of the Year were Pam Lawless (Kinglake) and Wayne Miller (Alexandra). It was wonderful to be able to present Kate and Pam their awards and join in the celebrations with the Kinglake community. It was an absolute pleasure, on Australia Day making Ms Astrid Bathen an Australian Citizen in Kinglake.

At the end of January I was invited to a barbeque and tour of the Alexandra Tourist Park on Maroondah Highway by new owner Peter Scott. It is great opportunity to meet and see passionate business owners who have the best interest of their customers at hand. Peter has a great vision for the park from infrastructure to rebranding. This will ultimately have a positive impact to the local community, tourism and economy.

I attended events at Lake Mountain and Kinglake on the two days that the Jayco Herald Sun Tour was in the shire. It was fantastic to witness first hand world class sport in the shire and the way locals got involved to celebrate the tour in our region.

It was lovely to have the chance to meet the year 11 ladies from the Alexandra Secondary College's 2018 Alice Sloan program. I was invited to provide hints and tips on public speaking. I was very impressed with the calibre and maturity of the young ladies and wish them all the best with the program and look forward to crossing paths with them again soon.

I have recently learnt the meaning of the word 'Nonagenarian' and was delighted to be a part of the 90 and up launch and celebrations of the shire residents aged 90 and over of which there are over 100. Last week in the Alexandra Town Hall, people from all over the shire gathered to celebrate with a delicious high tea.

I also attended a Disaster Resilience forum run by CEACA in conjunction with the Country Fire Authority (CFA), in Marysville. The focus was on the north east of the shire and community leaders being a key part of community resilience. Those around the table included the Alexandra Rotary Club, Alexandra State Emergency Service (SES), Alexandra Secondary College, CEACA, Alexandra District Health, Mens Sheds from Alexandra and Marysville, Marysville Tourism and Business Traders, CFA, Redgate and Alexandra Country Women's Association (CWA) and the Marysville Triangle Community Foundation.

Last, but not least it was lovely to be joined by Cr Dunscombe this morning in Kinglake to conduct an Australian Citizenship Ceremony for locals Ms Celestine Hanley from Toolangi and Mr Frank Bowen from Pheasant Creek. Both were joined by family for the ceremony and a morning tea.

As a Council representative of the Yea Saleyards Committee of Management it is exciting to report that next Friday there will be the official opening of stage two of the saleyards development that includes the new extension of roof and yards. The offerings from the yards have also increased with the installation of a scale house to weigh the cattle which in turn increases the professionalism of the facility and raises quality of service.

15. ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCILLORS

Purpose

This report presents the records of assemblies of Councillors for 17 January 2018 to 21 February 2018, for Council to note in accordance with Section 80A of the *Local Government Act 1989* (the Act).

Officer Recommendation

That Council receives and notes the record of assemblies of Councillors for 17 January 2018 to 21 February 2018.

Background

In accordance with Section 80A of the Act, written assemblies of Councillors are to be reported at an Ordinary Meeting of Council.

An assembly of Councillors includes advisory committees, where one or more Councillors were present, along with planned or scheduled meetings involving at least half of the Councillors and a Council officer.

A Councillor who has a conflict of interest at assemblies of Councillors, must disclose the conflict of interest, and leave the meeting while the matter is being discussed.

Discussion

A written record is required to be kept of every assembly of Councillors, including the names of all Councillors and staff at the meeting, a list of the matters considered, any conflict of interest disclosed by a Councillor, and whether a Councillor who disclosed a conflict left the meeting.

The following summary details are for 17 January 2018 to 21 February 2018:

Meeting Name/Type:	Councillor Briefing
Meeting Date:	17 January 2018
Matters Discussed:	<ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. Glenburn Roadhouse Planning Application 2. Winery Extension and Liquor Licence Glenburn 3. Business and Events Grant Program 4. Briefing by Tourism North East Representative 5. Review of Local Government Act 6. Community Planning Project 7. 2018/19 Budget Briefing 8. Proposed 2018/19 Capital Budget 9. Kings Road Kinglake West Petition
Councillor Attendees:	Cr C Bisset, Cr S McAulay, Cr L Dunscombe, Cr R Bowles, Cr J Ashe, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording
Council Officer Attendees:	C Lloyd, M Chesworth, S McConnell, S Brown, T Carter, A Bond, N McNamara, J Canny, N McGuire, D Fotheringham, L Kelly
Conflict of Interest Disclosures:	Nil

Meeting Name/Type:	Councillor Briefing (Council Meeting Pre Brief)
Meeting Date:	24 January 2018
Matters Discussed:	<ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. Glenburn Roadhouse Planning Application 2. Application for Winery Extension and liquor Licence 3. Business and Tourism Grant Program 4. Kings Road Kinglake West Petition 5. Murrindindi Bushfire Memorials Construction
Councillor Attendees:	Cr C Bisset, Cr S McAulay, Cr L Dunscombe, Cr R Bowles, Cr J Ashe, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording
Council Officer Attendees:	C Lloyd, M Chesworth, S McConnell, S Brown, A Bond, J Canny, M Leitinger
Conflict of Interest Disclosures: Nil	

Meeting Name/Type:	Councillor Briefing
Meeting Date:	7 February 2018
Matters Discussed:	<ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. Proposed 2018/19 Capital Budget 2. Current Status of Recycling 3. Regional Tourism Partnerships
Councillor Attendees:	Cr S McAulay, Cr L Dunscombe, Cr R Bowles, Cr J Ashe, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording
Council Officer Attendees:	C Lloyd, M Chesworth, S McConnell, A Bond, L Kelly, J Canny, M Leitinger, T Carter
Conflict of Interest Disclosures: Nil	

Meeting Name/Type:	Councillor Briefing
Meeting Date:	14 February 2018
Matters Discussed:	<ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. Recreation and Open Space Assets Review 2. Strategic Resource Plan and Long Term Financial Plan 3. Review of Murrindindi Environment Advisory Committee
Councillor Attendees:	Cr C Bisset, Cr S McAulay, Cr L Dunscombe, Cr R Bowles, Cr J Ashe, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording
Council Officer Attendees:	C Lloyd, M Chesworth, S McConnell, A Bond, M Leitinger, S Collier, N McNamara, A Kyval
Conflict of Interest Disclosures: Nil	

Meeting Name/Type:	Councillor Briefing
Meeting Date:	21 February 2018
Matters Discussed:	<ol style="list-style-type: none"> 1. Regional Tourism Partnerships
Councillor Attendees:	Cr C Bisset, Cr S McAulay, Cr L Dunscombe, Cr R Bowles, Cr J Ashe, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording
Council Officer Attendees:	C Lloyd, S McConnell, S Brown, A Kyval
Conflict of Interest Disclosures: Nil	

RESOLUTION:**Cr M Rae / Cr E Lording****That Council receives and notes the record of assemblies of Councillors for 17 January 2018 to 21 February 2018.****CARRIED**

16. SEALING REGISTER

File Reference	Date Seal Affixed	Description of Documents	Signatures of Persons Sealing
CONT 17/21	25 January 2018	Formal Instrument of Agreement between Murrindindi Shire Council and Fineblade Pty Ltd for construction of the Murrindindi Bushfire Memorials	Craig Lloyd Cr Charlotte Bisset
CONT 17/20	14 February 2018	Formal Instrument of Agreement between Murrindindi Shire Council and Daniel Duna Construction Pty Ltd for Marysville & Triangle Arts & Culture - Internal Refurbishment	Craig Lloyd Cr Charlotte Bisset

Officer Recommendation

That the list of items to which the Council seal has been affixed be noted.

RESOLUTION:

Cr J Ashe / Cr L Dunscombe

That the list of items to which the Council seal has been affixed be noted.

CARRIED

17. CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

The Local Government Act 1989 section 89(2) allows Council to resolve to close a meeting to the public to consider confidential information relating to any of the following matters:

- (a) personnel matters
- (b) the personal hardship of any resident or ratepayer
- (c) industrial matters
- (d) contractual matters
- (e) proposed developments
- (f) legal advice
- (g) matters affecting the security of Council property
- (h) any other matter which the Council or special committee considers would prejudice the Council or any person
- (i) a resolution to close the meeting to members of the public.

Where possible Council will resolve to make public any decision it makes in a closed meeting where the resolution does not disclose confidential information. There may be occasions where Council cannot make its decision public.

The reports on the Tender 17/33 – Planning Services Panel, Tender 18/1 – Yea Regional Saleyards – Truck Parking Area, Tender 17/4 – Civil Works Panel and Eildon Jamieson Road – Safety Improvements are being considered in the closed part of this meeting because it is considered under S89(2)(d) contractual matters.

Recommendation

That Council, in accordance with the *Local Government Act 1989* section 89(2)(d), resolve to close the meeting to the members of the public:

- Tender 17/33 – Planning Services Panel

- Tender 18/1 – Yea Regional Saleyards – Truck Parking Area
- Tender 17/4 – Civil Works Panel
- Eildon Jamieson Road – Safety Improvements

RESOLUTION:

Cr R Bowles / E Lording

That Standing Orders be suspended.

CARRIED

The meeting was suspended at 7.58 pm.

RESOLUTION:

Cr L Dunscombe / E Lording

That Standing Orders be resumed.

CARRIED

The meeting was resumed at 8 pm.

RESOLUTION:

Cr M Rae / Cr L Dunscombe

That the meeting be closed to the public pursuant to s.89(2)(d) of the *Local Government Act 1989* due to contractual matters.**CARRIED**

The meeting closed to the public at 8.01 pm.

RESOLUTION:

Cr S McAulay / Cr J Ashe

That the meeting re-opens to the public.

The meeting re-opened to the public at 8.10 pm.

17.3 TENDER 17/33 – PLANNING SERVICES PANEL**RESOLUTION:**

That Council:

1. agrees to establish a panel for planning services with the following suppliers:
 - a. Cathkin Vale Pty Ltd
 - b. Currie Brown (Australia) Pty Ltd
 - c. Mountain Planning
 - d. PLC Consulting Pty Ltd
 - e. SED Regional Advisory
2. authorise the signing and sealing of Contract 17/33 with each of the above suppliers for a three year period, with two optional one year extension periods.

CARRIED

17.4 TENDER 18/1 – YEA REGIONAL SALEYARDS – TRUCK PARKING AREA**RESOLUTION:**

Cr E Lording / Cr L Dunscombe
That Council:

- accept the tender from Keath's Excavations Pty Ltd for the lump sum price of \$176,533.00 (excluding GST), being Option A (recommended truck parking area) for the Yea Regional Saleyards – Truck Parking Area
- authorise the signing and sealing of contract number 18/1 – Yea Regional Saleyards – Truck Parking Area
- approve the allocation of a contingency amount as detailed in this report.

CARRIED

17.5 TENDER 17/4 – CIVIL WORKS PANEL**RESOLUTION:**

Cr E Lording / Cr S McAulay
That Council:

1. agrees to establish a panel for civil works with the following suppliers for each of the panel categories:
 - a. bridge maintenance and culvert construction (Category A)
 - Keath's Excavations Pty Ltd
 - Hird Constructions Pty Ltd
 - Fineblade Pty Ltd
 - North Central Construction
 - b. landscaping and retaining structures (Category B)
 - Keath's Excavations Pty Ltd
 - Fineblade Pty Ltd
 - North Central Construction
 - Parkworks Environmental Group
 - c. stormwater drainage construction and maintenance (Category C)
 - Keath's Excavations Pty Ltd
 - Fineblade Pty Ltd
 - North Central Construction
 - Plumbtrax Infrastructure Services
 - d. road pavement and path maintenance and reconstruction (Category D)
 - Keath's Excavations Pty Ltd
 - North Central Construction
 - Fineblade Pty Ltd
 - Quality Roads Pty Ltd
 - e. road construction and re-construction (Category E)

- Keath's Excavations Pty Ltd
 - Quality Roads Pty Ltd
 - Marchese Excavations and Bin Hire Pty Ltd
 - Fineblade Pty Ltd
- f. concrete kerbs, paths and general concrete works (Category F)
- SATA Pty Ltd
 - Fineblade Pty Ltd
 - The Australian Grinding Company
 - North Central Construction.

2. authorise the signing and sealing of Contract 17/4 with each of the above suppliers for a three year period, with two optional one year extension periods.

CARRIED

17.6 EILDON JAMIESON ROAD – SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS

RESOLUTION:

Cr E Lording / Cr S McAulay

That Council:

- accept the revised tender from Quality Roads Pty Ltd for the lump sum price of \$385,558.00 for road safety improvements – Eildon Jamieson Road
- authorise the signing and sealing of contract number 17/10
- approve the allocation of a contingency amount as detailed in this report.

CARRIED

There being no further items of Business, the Chairperson declared the meeting closed at 8.10 pm.

CONFIRMED THIS

Wednesday 28 March 2018

CHAIRPERSON

